NATIONS CCPR

: Distr.
Inter_nghonal covenant GENERAL
on civil and
.. . CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
political rights 30 July 1998

Original: ENGLISH

HUMAN RI GHTS COWM TTEE
Si xty-third session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1689t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 24 July 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai r person: Ms. CHANET

|later: M. EL SHAFEI
(Vi ce Chairperson)

later: Ms. CHANET
(Chai r per son)
CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (conti nued)

Third periodic report of the United Republic of Tanzania

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-17097 (E)



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a. m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Third periodic report of the United Republic of Tanzani a(CCPR/ C/ 83/ Add. 2;
CCPR/ C/ 63/ @ URT/ 1/ Rev. 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, M. Ml anbugi and M. Kalanje
(United Republic of Tanzania) took places at the Conmmittee table

2. The CHAI RPERSON wel conmed the del egation of the United Republic of
Tanzania and invited the head of del egation to make an introductory statenent.
3. M. MALAMBUG (United Republic of Tanzania) said it was unfortunate that
the final list of issues to be taken up in connection with the consideration

of his delegation's report (CCPR/ C/63/Q URT/1/Rev.1) had been received only a
short time previously and that his del egation had been unable to undertake the
necessary consultations to respond adequately to all the questions raised.
Since not all m ssions had computer connections to their capitals and had to
rely on nore traditional nmethods of comrunication, he proposed that the |ist
of issues be nmade available to the reporting State at |east three nonths
before the date on which the report was to be considered so as to give the

del egation concerned tinme to prepare the responses.

4, The nost inportant devel opnent since the consideration of Tanzania's
second periodic report in 1992 had been the reintroduction of politica
pluralismafter nore than two decades of single-party rule. Elections for

| ocal governnment councils in 1993 and general elections for the presidency and
the parlianment in Cctober 1995 had al ready been contested on a multi-party
basis. The ruling party, Chama cha Mapi nduzi (CCM, had energed victorious in
bot h el ecti ons.

5. The expansion of democracy with the entry of other actors into the
political arena had been acconpani ed by greater governnment l|iberalismin

all owing for the operation of privately owned newspapers, radio and tel evision
stations, which had nushroonmed overnight. It was testinmony to the changing
tinmes that there were currently many nore privately owned nedia than
government-control | ed ones.

6. The judiciary had taken a proactive role in defending human rights.
Judges did not hesitate to strike down any | egislation found to be contrary to
the Constitution. As the popul ati on becane nore aware of human rights,
litigation on the subject was increasing.

7. The introduction of nulti-party politics had not, however, been w thout
its teething problems. Losers, on either side of the political spectrum did
not readily accept their fate. That was why, nore than two and a half years
into the five-year mandate of the current Parlianment, election petitions were
still being subnmitted. Only a week previously, a prom nent m nister had | ost
his portfolio as a result of a successful petition by his constituency
opponent. The overwhel mi ng nunber of petitions had cl ogged up the court
system The hiring of acting judges to expedite them had been a palliative
only, with the consequence that ordinary cases were piling up in the

Hi gh Court.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 3

8. In Zanzi bar, despite the magnanimty of the ruling party in offering the
opposition a role in government, an offer that had pronptly been rejected, the
losing party was |ikew se refusing to accept the results of the presidential

el ections and was boycotting sessions of the House of Representatives as wel
as conducting actions of passive resistance which often ended up in the

comm ssion of commmon crinmes. It was hoped that efforts by the
Secretary-Ceneral of the Commpnwealth to nediate in that stand-off would
result in an acceptable conprom se

9. Since much of what was currently taking place in his country emanated
fromthe adoption of the Nyalali report, he wished to describe it briefly.

The principal terms of reference given to the Nyalali Comm ssion had been to
ascertain the views of Tanzanians in respect of the desirability of continuing
with a one-party State, to consider the pros and cons of changes in the
political set-up and to recommend ways in which the basic principles of
denocracy could be established and expanded. It had been mandated to

exam ne, and to recomrend any necessary changes to, the Constitutions of the
Uni ted Republic of Tanzania and Zanzi bar and any other relevant |egislation

It had been requested to examne in detail the question of whether any changes
in the position of Zanzibar in the Union would be in Zanzibar's interests,
taking into account its history, politics and culture.

10. The maj or findings of the Nyalali Comm ssion had been that the two
Constitutions had many shortcom ngs and that sonme of the |laws of the two
countries were flawed. To rectify those shortcom ngs, the Conm ssion had
recomrended that certain articles of the two Constitutions be repealed so as
to renove the constitutional nonopoly of political power by the ruling party.
Bot h Governnents had agreed to that proposal and the offending articles had
been duly expunged.

11. In order to give effect to the Commi ssion's recomendations and to
i ntroduce political pluralism the Government had pronul gated amendnments to
the Constitution that were applicable to both parts of the Union. It had al so

undertaken and continued to undertake the necessary anendments to other pieces
of legislation so as to expand the enjoynment of human rights by Tanzani ans.

12. Lastly, the Nyalali Commi ssion had identified 40 pieces of “repressive”

| egi slation, which either denied or constrained the rights and freedons of the
peopl e, and they had been referred to the Law Ref orm Conm ssion for in-depth
anal ysis. The Commi ssion had finalized its review and rel eased the results a
week previously. The Tanzani an Governnent had not accepted one mgj or
recomrendati on of the Nyalali Conm ssion, the establishnment of a federa
system conposed of a federal government plus the Governnments of Tanzani a and
Zanzi bar, on the grounds that such a nove woul d weaken the Union and entail a
heavy financial outlay.

13. Turning to the list of issues (CCPR/ C/63/Q URT/Rev.1), he said that, as
a conmon-|aw country, the United Republic of Tanzania did not automatically
apply international conventions w thout incorporating theminto donmestic
legislation. In principle, therefore, the provisions of the Covenant could
not operate as a direct source of individual rights or be invoked in courts of
|l aw. Neverthel ess, Tanzani an courts were prepared to be guided by the letter
and spirit of human rights instrunents ratified by the Governnent and, though
the Covenant could not be cited by nanme, the courts did apply its underlying
principles in their decisions.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 4

14. Wth respect to paragraph 2 of the list of issues and the conplex matter
of customary law, he said that a review had been made of |aws that were

i nconpatible with international human rights instruments. The Governnent was
currently engaged in enacting new |l egislation on inheritance and |and | aw
geared towards elim nating gender inequalities and other biases. Significant
anmendnents to the Penal Code included the enactnent of special provisions
regardi ng sexual and other offences so as to create further safeguards for the
personal integrity, liberty and security of wonmen and children, to inpose

puni shment on guilty parties and to ensure conpensation and protective
measures for victinms. Fermale genital nutilation had been nade a crim nal

of fence under the Penal Code

15. One of the problens in dealing with sexual offences was the fact that
cases were heard in open court and many victinms were unwilling to denounce the
of fences due to the negative publicity and the stigna attached to the victim
It was hoped that the promul gation of the Sexual Offences Act, allow ng for
the hearing of such cases in privacy, would renedy that situation

16. There were no legal restrictions on equal access by wonen to enpl oynent
but, in actual practice, owing to their |ack of education wonen did not stand
as good a chance of obtaining enploynment as nmen. They usually dropped out of
school and there were fewer schools for girls than for boys. Wile parity of
enrol ment of boys and girls in primary schools had been achieved, there was a
maj or di screpancy at the higher educational l|levels. The Governnment was trying
to rectify that situation, however, and had taken affirmative action to | ower
the pass mark for girls so that nore of them could enter secondary school and
wher e possi ble, boys' schools had been opened for the enrol nent of female

pupils.

17. As a neasure of its commtnent to gender equality, the Governnment was
considering ratification of ILO Conventions Nos. 100 and 101 on equa
remuneration and di scrimnation, respectively. In Zanzibar unmarried wonen

who becane pregnant were liable to inprisonnment for three years. Men who
i mpregnat ed wonen outside marriage were liable to five years' inprisonment.

18. Wth respect to paragraph 3 of the list of issues, he said that the term
“absol ute necessity” had never been clarified in practice, since no state of
energency had ever been declared in his country and it was not possible,
therefore, to explain the circunstances in which it would be used.

Section 31 (3) of the Constitution prohibited deprivation of life, with the
sol e exception of death arising fromacts of war. It would thus appear that
the President had no power to derogate fromthe right tolife. Section 31
was, however, one of the provisions recomended for review by the

Nyal al i Commi ssi on.

19. The Governnent of the United Republic did not release figures on the
nunmber of people executed. The death penalty existed both on the nainland and
in Zanzi bar, but was not carried out on mnors. Since the revolution of 1964,
the death penalty had never been inposed in Zanzi bar. While understanding the
sentinments of the abolitionists, the Government needed the death sentence on
its statute book as a deterrent.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 5

20. The | aw prohibited nmob justice, whether meted out to suspected thieves
or to suspected witches: such cases were accordingly dealt with by the

Penal Code. Concerning the death of a menmber of the Civic United Front (CUF)
in 1993, the policeman who had fired the |ethal bullet had been arrested and
charged with nurder. The shooting had taken place during a riot, however, and
the court had found that the act had been an unintentional one. The accused
had been di scharged, but admi nistrative steps had been taken to dismss him
fromthe police force. The fatal shooting had been largely the result of poor
training in riot-control nmethods and a | ack of appropriate gear: riots had
not often been experienced during single-party rule. To avert any repetition,
the Governnent had procured riot-control gear, including rubber bullets.

21. Cor poral punishnment was inposed by the courts both on the mainland and
in Zanzibar in conformty with the Corporal Punishnent Ordinance and was
adm ni stered in schools for serious breaches of school discipline. Strokes,
whi ch shoul d not exceed six, were administered by striking the pupil's hand or
normal ly clothed buttock using a flexible stick. Female pupils received such
puni shment from fenal e teachers; where none was available, witten

aut hori zation fromthe head of the school was required. The statute providing
for corporal punishment was anong the 40 pieces of “repressive” |egislation
reconmended for review or repeal

22. Answering the questions in paragraph 4 of the list of issues, he said
that, according to the United Nations Hi gh Conm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR)
the United Republic was currently hosting 267,000 refugees from Burundi,
47,000 refugees fromthe Denocratic Republic of the Congo, 5,500 refugees from
Rwanda and 3,000 to 4,000 refugees from Somalia. The Government estimted
that an additional 500,000 or nore refugees had settled spontaneously in the
country but were not recognized by UNHCR because they were self-sufficient.

23. For security reasons deriving fromthe mlitarization of the refugee
canps, the movenent of refugees had had to be confined to the canps. Children
born in the canps to refugee wonmen were regi stered by UNHCR and inherited both
the refugee status and the citizenship of their parents.

24. Concerni ng paragraph 5, he said that section 12 (6) (e) of the Zanzi bar
Constitution prohibited torture or inhuman or degrading treatnent or

puni shment. The Government of Zanzi bar was very careful about its handling of
political figures and did not ill-treat them for fear of negative publicity.

I nvestigations carried out by the authorities in response to conplaints from
t he Speci al Rapporteur on questions related to torture invariably showed that
those conplaints were not well founded and were mainly politically inspired.

25. Turning to paragraph 6 of the list of issues, he said that, owing to the
shortage of time for the preparation of replies, he had no information on the
number of cases of people detained under the Preventive Detention Act or the

| ength of such detentions. The Act was very rarely invoked, however, and was
one of those identified by the Nyalali Conmm ssion as being inimcal to the
enjoynment of human rights in Tanzania. 1In the eight years since the current
Presi dent had assumed power, no one had been detained in Zanzi bar under the
Act .



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 6

26. In reply to the questions in paragraph 7, he said that prison conditions
had deteriorated due to the econom c problens facing the United Republic

of Tanzania. Since independence, the Government had not built enough new
prisons to keep up with the popul ation increase, and there was serious
overcrowding in alnost all prisons. Prisoners received nedical care, however,
and the basic philosophy was to rehabilitate them so that they could becone
better citizens. Prisoners were consequently given training in practica
skills so that they would be able to cope when rel eased. To relieve
congestion, the Governnent had adopted legislation to introduce a parole
system and the courts were encouraged to hand down non-custodi al sentences
whenever possi bl e.

27. There was no prisons inspectorate, but inspections were supposed to be
carried out on a nonthly basis by visiting nagistrates and judges so that they
could review prison conditions and recomend renedi al neasures. There had,

i ndeed, been deaths in prison, the result of natural causes: where there were
any grounds for suspecting foul play, an inquest was held to establish the
cause of death and take any |legal action if needed.

28. The CHAI RPERSON said that the del egation of the United Republic

of Tanzani a appeared to have m sunderstood the procedure followed by the
Comrittee in considering reports, since the introductory statenent by the head
of the del egation had, in fact, answered a nunber of the questions in the |ist
of issues. The purpose of the Iist was to structure the oral discussion and,
since answers had al ready been given to the questions in paragraphs 1 to 7 of
the list, she invited the nenbers of the Committee to ask any foll ow up
guestions they m ght have.

29. Lord COVILLE said that the mandate of the Nyalali Commr ssion had
primarily been to review the single-party system That review had resulted
in reforms which, in terns of article 25 of the Covenant, were clearly

i nprovenents on the previous situation and enabled citizens to participate in
political life w thout unreasonable restrictions. The Committee appl auded

t hose advances and hoped that they would help to overcone the “teething”

probl ens nmentioned by the head of the del egation.

30. The Committee would, however, |ike to hear about sone of the other

i mportant issues that had been addressed by the Nyalali Conm ssion. For

i nstance, sonme account of the other subjects covered by the 40 pieces of
legislation identified as requiring reformand referred to the Law Reform
Commi ssion would be of interest. He would |ike to know whether, upon

conpl etion of the work of the Nyalali Conmm ssion and of the Law Reform
Commi ssion, there was any overall strategy for further review and whether a
parlianmentary conmttee or other organ had been envi saged to undertake an
ongoing review of legislation in terms of its conpliance with human rights
requirements as a separate exercise fromthe work of the Constitutional Court,
whi ch could only extrapolate, slowy and | aboriously, fromthe individual
cases submitted to it.

31. Noting that the | egal system both on the mainland and in Zanzi bar, was
still clogged up by cases arising fromthe elections of October 1995, he said
that it would be useful to have an idea of the size of the backlog. Was it
still growing, and was the judiciary able to keep pace with it? Had it led to



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 7

long delays in crimnal trials? He would also welcome further information
about the practice of hiring acting judges to help the judiciary keep up with
its workload and, in particular, about what was being done to ensure that the
i ndependence and educational |evel of the acting judges were adequate. Wre
the criteria for appointing acting judges as strict as those governing the
appoi nt mrent of regul ar judges?

32. M. El Shafei, Vice-Chairperson, took the Chair

33. M. PRADO VALLEJO said that, while he wel coned the significant advances
achieved in the political field in Tanzani a since the second periodic report,
there were sone aspects of the third report that still gave grounds for
concern. Paragraph 7, for instance, spoke of restriction on the registration
of political parties which were based on religion or tribalismor based on
only one region of the country. It would be helpful if the delegation could
expand further on the reasons for that restriction.

34. According to paragraph 47, the right to |ife could apparently be
suspended under certain circunstances. |If so, that was surely in flagrant
contradiction with the fundanmental principle set forth in article 4 of the
Covenant. He hoped that the delegation would provide full clarification on
t hat point.

35. Par agraph 57 referred to the possibility of certain categories of
det ai nees being held i ncommuni cado for limted periods of tine. Experience in
other countries showed that it was precisely during periods of inconmmunicado
detention that the worst abuses tended to occur, and an expl anati on was thus
called for.

36. According to paragraph 61 of the report, corporal punishnment, which had
been abolished in 1972, had been brought back in 1989 and was adm nistered in
cases of certain violent offences. That state of affairs was clearly
inconsistent with article 7 of the Covenant. Noting that the Nyal al

Comnmi ssion had questioned the appropriateness of maintaining corpora

puni shment (para. 63), he invited the del egation to explain the reasons

for its reintroduction

37. Wi | e appreciating Tanzania's difficulties in the face of the probl em of
| arge nunbers of refugees from nei ghbouring countries, he considered that sone
of the Governnment's reactions to the problem were unacceptable and shoul d not
recur. There were reports that certain refugees from Burundi had been handed
over to the authorities of that country in January 1997 and had been

i medi atel y executed. That was unquestionably contrary to the principle of
asylum and the protection of refugees. It was also reported that many Rwandan
ref ugees had gone into hiding in Tanzania for fear of being returned to their
country where they, too, faced possible death.

38. What was the Tanzani an Governnent's policy on the refugee issue? What
measures was it taking, or planning to take, to control the serious violence
said to be widespread in the refugee canps? Lastly, was it correct that
Tanzania did not allow refugee famlies to reunite, and if so, for what
reason? Family reunification was an inportant humanitarian principle that
shoul d be respected wherever possible.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 8

39. Ms. Chanet resuned the Chair.

40. M. BHAGWATI said that Tanzania's third periodic report was, perhaps, a
little lacking in details of the practical application of the Covenant, but
that shortcom ng had to sone extent been offset by the del egation's

i ntroduction. The first set of supplenmentary questions he wi shed to ask
related to the judiciary. What was the representati on of women in the
judiciary? Had any changes been made, in view of the Law Reform Comr ssion's
reconmendations, to the existing inheritance and | and ownership |aws for
wonen, and if not, did the Government have any plans to bring about gender
equality in those areas?

41. Noting that the power of appointnent, pronotion and disni ssal of

magi strates was vested in the President, who exercised it in consultation with
the Chief Justice, he asked whether the advice of the Chief Justice was

bi ndi ng upon the President in all cases. Wre nmagistrates given opportunities
for further training, especially in the field of human rights, after their
appoi ntment? Were there special sem nars or conferences for judges, including
H gh Court judges and judges of the Court of Appeal? That point was of
particul ar inportance in view of the fact that not all of the rights under the
Covenant were incorporated in the Constitution of Tanzani a.

42. In other Commonweal th countries, steps were taken to acquaint judges
with ways in which provisions of international instruments not found in the
Constitution could be incorporated into domestic |aw through a process of
interpretation. Simlar action should be taken in Tanzania. For his part, he
would like to see all the rights covered by the Covenant incorporated into the
Constitution, and he wondered whether any recomrendation to that effect had
been made by the Law Reform Comni ssion

43. Was any provision nade for |egal assistance to persons charged with a
crimnal offence in accordance with article 14, paragraph 3, subparagraph (d),
of the Covenant? \What was the maxi num period of pre-trial detention, and how
long did it normally take for a defendant to be brought to trial? Did the
victins of unlawful detention receive conpensation in accordance with

article 9, paragraph 5?

44, Turning to the question of the rights of persons in the position of

ref ugees, he associated hinself with the comrents nade by M. Prado Vallejo
and asked whether the Mnister for Hone Affairs, when deciding upon an
applicant's refugee status, was obliged to follow the advice of the National
Eligibility Commttee. What was that Committee's conposition? Ws there any
possibility of appeal against the Mnister's decision? In determ ning refugee
status, did the Mnister follow the definition provided in the 1951 Conventi on
relating to the Status of Refugees or the much w der definition adopted by the
Organi zation of African Unity (OAU)? In the case of assisted refugees, was
sone of the assistance provided by UNHCR or did the Governnment bear the entire
bur den?

45. Was it true that foreign citizens, including some who had lived in
Tanzania for nore than 10 years, were sonetines rounded up and taken to
refugee canps where they were not allowed to engage in any form of work, even
smal |l -scale farmi ng? Where were asylum seekers held until their status had



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 9

been determ ned by the Mnister? Wre there special reception centres, and if
so, how many? What were the conditions in such centres? Ws it true that a
refugee who committed an offence could be remanded in custody for severa
nont hs or even years?

46. M. ZAKHI A asked whether the Law of Marriage Act of 1971 referred to in
paragraph 30 of the report was conpul sory and, if not, whether the Governnent
was envi sagi ng any steps to encourage the nore devel oped sections of society
to adopt marriage practices based on the equality of the sexes. |If a
Tanzani an citizen married abroad under a | aw which conflicted with Tanzani an
customary | aw, which of the two |l aws would prevail ?

47. Referring to the problem of single wonen who becanme pregnant, he asked
whet her there was not a risk of clandestine abortions that could endanger the
lives of both nothers and children. He invited the delegation to provide
figures concerning abortions and the deaths consequent upon them

48. Ms. GAI TAN DE POVBO said that the fact that children were not allowed to
take part in armed conflict was particularly inmportant in view of the grow ng
mlitarization of the refugee canps. The del egati on had provi ded sone overal
figures for the refugee popul ation, but she would |ike sone nore detail ed
statistics about refugee children. \What was their precise status, and how
were they registered? What was the Tanzani an Governnent's policy with regard
to foreigners not recognized as refugees by UNHCR?

49. M. KLEIN said that, while the subm ssion of the third periodic report

of Tanzania was to be wel coned, he was sonmewhat di sappointed by the scant

i nformati on the report contained about the actual practice and jurisprudence
in human rights matters. VWhile joining previous speakers in recognizing

the inportance of Tanzania's return to a nulti-party system he noted that

not very much progress had been made since the Nyalali Conmm ssion's
reconmendati ons of 1992. The recommendati ons of the Law Reform Comm ssion had
not yet been inplenented and it was unclear to what extent they would be

i npl emrented in the future

50. Wil e he accepted Tanzania's conm tnment to the principle of the rule of
law, as fornul ated in paragraph 145 of the report, there could be no doubt,
however, that many existing laws were clearly in contradiction with the
Covenant, and he was di sappointed by the continuance of such viol ations, of
whi ch the Governnent appeared to be aware. Tanzania was a commn-| aw country,
whi ch meant that provisions not incorporated in donestic |aw could not be

i nvoked, but that did not affect Tanzania's international obligations or the
international responsibility it incurred by breaching them In that
connection, he asked whether the United Republic of Tanzania continued to
operate a dual system of statute |aw and customary |aw, so that people could
choose to marry, for example, under either regine.

51. Wil e he wel conmed the statenent in paragraph 60 of the report that
persons were not expelled to countries where they m ght be subjected to
torture he noted that an exception was made in the case of countries with

whi ch an extradition treaty had been concluded. Since the principle involved
had the status of jus cogens, it took precedence over extradition treaties.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 10

52. Associating hinmself with M. Prado Vallejo's remarks on corpora

puni shnment, he said it was nost distressing that the practice had been
reintroduced in 1989 - 13 years after the United Republic of Tanzani a had
ratified the Covenant. The del egation had nentioned that corporal punishnent
was adm ni stered in cases of rape and robbery. Wre those the only cases and
was it supplenentary to other forms of punishment? How frequently was it used
in practice?

53. According to paragraph 79 of the report, the President was enpowered
under the Deportation Ordinance to deport a person who was conducting hinself
in a manner that mght lead to public unrest. How frequently had that

Ordi nance been used? Was there any possibility of a judicial review in such
cases?

54. The del egation had admitted that there was serious overcrowding in
Tanzani an prisons. Economic constraints could not be invoked to justify a
violation of article 10 of the Covenant. \What steps were being taken to
remedy the situation and to protect prisoners against violence by fell ow

i nmat es, a phenonenon that was frequently associated with overcrowdi ng.

55. M. KRETZMER said that paragraph 44 of the report asserted that the use
of firearnms by the police and security forces was strictly controlled. There
were many al |l egati ons, however, that people had been gunned down by the police
or shot dead while in custody. Alleged incidents included the death in
custody of six persons suspected of robbery at Arusha in January 1998, the
shooting of two persons in Mwenbechai in February 1998 and of one person in
Moezi Tenboni, and the shooting of a suspect as he attenpted to escape from
custody. He would like to know who investigated allegations that the police
were not observing the rules of conduct and whether there was any provision
for an independent inquiry.

56. Tanzani an non- gover nnental organi zations (NGOs) alleged that beatings
of detai nees had becone al nost standard practice in police stations. What
form of nonitoring existed to prevent police officers, who were perhaps

i nadequately trained or unaware of the relevant legal rules, fromengaging in
such conduct ?

57. Par agraph 55 of the report referred to provisions prohibiting illegal
forms of search and arrest. \What was the status of evidence obtained as a
result of such illegal procedures? Wuld it be thrown out by the courts?

58. As admitted in the report, the Preventive Detention Act had been
severely criticized. He asked for nore details concerning a detainee's right
to challenge his detention in the courts, if possible with reference to
specific cases.

59. In view of the prevailing attitudes and customs in Tanzani an society, as
described in the report and the delegation's introductory remarks, he was
particularly concerned at the situation of wonen in detention. What steps
were taken to protect women detainees from abuse? Were they held separately
fromnmen? Wre the prison guards nmen and, if so, what steps were taken to
prevent harassnment and sexual abuse?



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 11

60. Under the 1965 Citizenship Act, a foreign woman who married a Tanzani an
man acquired Tanzani an citizenship but a foreign man who married a Tanzani an
woman did not. Had that discrimnatory provision been removed fromthe

1995 Citi zenship Act?

61. Ms. EVATT said that, while she welcomed the introduction of multi-party
denocracy, she noted that many relics of former times had survived in the

| egal systemand in practice. The Law Reform Conmi ssion had nmade specific
recomrendations in 1994 and 1995 concerning the reform of discrimnatory

| egislation on the fam ly, marriage, inheritance, custody, maintenance

and other matters, but no action seenmed to have been taken on those
recomrendations to date. The marriageabl e age was still different for nen and
wonmen and, under customary law, it could be | ower than 15 years of age for
girls. Polyganous marriage was permtted and customary | aw discrim nated

agai nst widows in matters of succession.

62. Was it true that many wonen were inprisoned for making illicit al cohol?
Coul d Tanzani an wonen married to foreigners pass on their citizenship to their
children on the sane ternms as nen? Was the right of wonmen to own | and

recogni zed in the draft |and ownership | egislation? Had steps been taken to
abolish the Wtchcraft Ordi nance which enabl ed wonen to be detained on
suspicion of witchcraft? Had marital rape and donestic viol ence been
crimnalized? What reasons were used to justify the inprisonment of unmarried
pregnant wonen? Were unsafe illegal abortions the main cause of materna
nmortality?

63. Her attention had been drawn to a nunmber of laws that restricted the
enpl oyment of wonen and she wondered whether it was true that the President
could prohibit the enpl oynent of wonen in certain areas. As noted by the
Comrittee following its consideration of the second periodic report,

article 25 of the Constitution adnmtted the possibility of various fornms of
conmpul sory labour, in violation of the Covenant. She understood that a nunber
of laws al so provided for conpul sory | abour.

64. She inquired about the Sungusungu anti-crinme groups, which had been
accused of using excessive force against suspects. Did they still exist and,
if so, what authority was exercised over thenr

65. Ms. MEDI NA QUI ROGA said that, since the Covenant could not be directly
i nvoked before the courts, the donestic renedi es described in paragraph 16 of
the report were extrenely inmportant. Petitions to the High Court were

descri bed as an effective remedy but she had been told that the requirenent
for three judges to be present for a court hearing led to | ong del ays.

66. According to paragraph 18, when the High Court found a | aw or neasure to
be unconstitutional, it did not automatically declare it null and void but

of fered the Governnment or the authority concerned a chance to rectify its

nm stake. That did not sound |ike an adequate renedy for victinms. How much
time was allowed for corrective action and what happened if the authority
concerned refused to act?

67. The del egation had stated that rubber bullets were to be used by the
police in the future. Experience had shown that such bullets could cause a
great deal of damage and she advised great caution in their use.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 12

68. Accordi ng to paragraph 51, capital punishment was not applied to m nors
under 18 years of age. Did the nmininmmage apply to the date on which the
crime was conmitted or to the date of execution of the death sentence? Were
any statistics available on the nunber of executions carried out?

69. She associated herself with M. Kretzner's question about presidential
powers under the Preventive Detention Act, with M. Klein's question regarding
extradition and with M. Prado Vallejo's coments on corporal punishment.

70. The issue of customary | aws and practices deserved nmore than the six
lines accorded it in the report. The State party's second periodic report
(CCPR/ C/ 42/ Add. 12) contai ned a great deal of information about forthcom ng
activities but there was no followup thereto in the third periodic report.
For exanpl e, paragraphs 46 and 47 of the second periodic report provided
statistical information on girls in education but there were no statistics in
the later report. She wished to know what progress had been made in the
meanti nme.

71. Par agraph 51 of the earlier report announced that the Land Conmi ssion
woul d 1 ook into the question of wonen's legal rights in respect of rea
property, but there again there had been no followup. Was it true that a
land bill had been tabled in Parlianment which would | egalize certain custonmary
| aws that discrimnated agai nst wonen?

72. Accordi ng to paragraph 55 of the second periodic report, a husband who
was econom cally better off than his estranged wife could invoke that status
to gain custody of the children. How much weight was given to the econonic
factor, which would generally mlitate against the nother? Had the situation
changed in the neantime?

73. Rape in the United Republic of Tanzania was a felony in the case of

m nors under 14 years of age but girls under 12 years of age could get nmarried
and their marriage could be consummated fromthe age of 12. That struck her
as a formof legalized rape. Wat was the authorities' response to the
relationshi p between rape in prisons and inprisonnment for out-of-wedl ock
pregnanci es? \Wat preventive measures had been adopted?

74. She associated herself with the questions that had been asked concerning
abortion. One in 18 wonen risked death from conplications relating to
maternity. As only between 10 and 14 per cent of women used contraceptives,
unwant ed pregnanci es were a nmj or problem

75. Was it true that the inter-party wonen's organi zati onBaraza | a Wanawake
wa Tanzania, nentioned in paragraphs 25 and 30 of the report, had been
deregi stered and, if so, why?

76. M . SCHEI NI N apol ogi zed to the del egation for the |late transm ssion of
the Iist of issues. There had been no discrimnation, however, since al

del egati ons had been equal |y di sadvantaged. Perhaps the Committee should
reviewits policy in the matter.

77. The report conveyed the inpression that the United Republic of Tanzania
was engaged in an intensive process of pronotion of human rights. There



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 13

seenmed to be a tendency towards stagnation, however, and it was of the utnost
i nportance that the monmentum should be maintained and the recomendati ons of
the Nyal ali Commi ssion inplenented through the Law Ref orm Commr ssion. There
were provisions of the existing legislation that were clearly inconpatible
with international human rights standards, such as the Wtchcraft Ordi nance
and the provisions regarding corporal punishnment. The latter issue had been
referred to in the Conmttee's previous concludi ng observati ons.

78. He associated hinself with the questions asked by Ms. Evatt and

Ms. Medi na Quiroga concerning the rights of wonen. The prohibition against
abortion was very strict, the only exception being preservation of the
nother's life. A rape victimwho was forced to carry her pregnancy to term
was exposed to the risk of suicide, depression and maternal nortality. The
right to life and the prohibition of inhuman treatnent were both at issue. He
asked for additional information on the enforcenent of the |aw.

79. Femal e genital nutilation was a crimnal offence but apparently
continued in sonme regions. How frequent was the practice and how was the | aw
enf or ced?

80. He understood that there were noves afoot to crimnalize marital rape
when a coupl e were separated but not during cohabitation. What was the
justification for meking such a distinction?

81. He associated hinmself with the questions asked by M. Prado Vallejo and
M. Klein concerning the treatnment of refugees. How were the rights

recogni zed in articles 6 and 7 of the Covenant guaranteed in the case of
persons facing deportation or extradition? He referred in particular to the
126 persons who had all egedly been handed over to the Burundi authorities in
January 1997 and execut ed.

82. M. ANDO said that, although the report was deficient in sone respects,
it was inportant that the dial ogue should continue, so that the Committee
could help the Governnment of Tanzania to find ways of overcom ng any
difficulties it was encountering in inproving the human rights situation
there.

83. There had been some m sunderstanding on the part of the del egation
concerning the nethodol ogy used in considering reports. The procedure whereby
the Cormmittee adopted the |list of issues at the beginning of each session in
which a report was to be exam ned ought not to be new to Tanzania, since it
had been followed on the occasion of the consideration of its second periodic
report. However, the Conmittee would do its best to speed up the process, and
he asked the delegation for its understanding if there had been a delay in the
delivery of the list.

84. He associated hinself with the point raised by M. Klein with regard to
the situation of duality whereby wwitten |aw ran side by side with custonary
| aw. The sane point had been raised in the course of the exami nation of the
second periodic report, but it appeared that the situation remained basically
unchanged. If that was so, the Comm ttee needed nore information about the



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 14

application of customary law, so that it could identify areas where that |aw
was not in conpliance with the Covenant. That was particularly true in the
area of gender equality.

85. The Energency Powers Act and the Preventive Detention Act both gave the
President very wi de powers with regard to the detention of individuals. He
under stood that the Acts had been criticized, not only by the Comrittee but
within Tanzania itself, and that anendments had been proposed. Again, the
situation did not seemto have changed nuch, and he would be glad to |learn
what the prospects were of a solution to the problem

86. He had understood from what the del egation had said that a proposal for
a federal system had been rejected. He would appreciate a further explanation
of the difficulties encountered in that regard and their inplications for
human rights.

87. M. POCAR said it was regrettable that the question of the Conmittee's
nmet hodol ogy for considering reports should have been raised, since Tanzania's
second report had been considered without giving rise to any problenms. He was
al so disappointed in the report itself, which did not conply sufficiently with
the Committee's guidelines, and fully supported the views expressed by

M. Klein on that matter.

88. He noted that, since the subm ssion of Tanzania's second periodic
report, the situation appeared to have stagnated. In 1992, the Conmittee

had recomended, first, that a clear |egal basis be provided for giving ful
effect to the provisions of the Covenant and, secondly, that provisions of the
Constitution and national |aw that were not in conformty with the Covenant
shoul d be anended. He did not see any substantial change in the provisions
concerned, notably those governing the state of energency.

89. Par agraph 49 of the report stated that there was a “range of safeguards”
guar ant eei ng the protection of those who faced the death penalty, such as the
right of appeal. It then stated that the convicted person could appeal to

the President to comute the sentence. Did that right of appeal represent
the full range of safeguards available? He would also appreciate sone
clarification regarding the statenent in paragraph 51 on the application of
the death penalty to m nors.

90. He was very concerned about the use of corporal punishment in Tanzani a.
There were also a nunber of articles of the Covenant, notably articles 7

and 9, that were not being fully respected in regard to the treatnent of
refugees and asylum seekers. He would |like to know nmore about the | ega
provi si ons governing those matters.

91. M. EL SHAFEI said that, as had already been pointed out, the Bil

of Rights of the Tanzanian Constitution did not fully reflect the rights
enshrined in the Covenant, and he suggested that the Governnent should take
the necessary steps to renmedy that situation, as required by article 2,

par agraph 2. He woul d also be glad if the del egation could explain any
factors and difficulties inpeding the full enjoynent of human rights in the



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 15

country. Were there any |egal provisions prohibiting discrimnation on the
grounds of political opinion in Tanzania, and was it intended to take any
affirmati ve action to overconme such discrimnation?

92. Did all detainees have the right to correspondence and visits, and what
was the frequency of such visits? Could prisoners speak to visitors wthout
the presence of a guard, and were they allowed to receive private visits from
their doctors? WAs restriction of correspondence and visits used as a

puni shnment, and was correspondence censored? Wth regard to disciplinary
matters, how were allegations investigated, who presided over the hearings,
and did the detainee have the right to be represented by counsel? Was the
corporal punishment of detainees legitimate, and if so, what formdid it take
and what was the frequency of its use?

93. Lastly, he associated hinself with the questions asked concerning
the application of customary law in Tanzania, and hoped to hear fromthe
del egati on what progress had been nmade by the Law Reform Conm ssion on the
i ssue.

94. M. MALAMBUG (United Republic of Tanzania) thanked the nenbers of the
Committee for the clarification they had provided concerning the procedure
used in preparing the |list of issues. However he still thought that, if the
Comrittee genuinely desired to establish a dialogue with the States parties
and expected proper replies to be given to all the questions asked, it should
find a way of ensuring that nore time was allowed and that the |ist of issues
was made avail able at an earlier stage.

95. Replying to the questions asked, he said that Tanzania did not yet have
a constitutional court, although provision had been nmade for establishing one.
Legi sl ati on was being reviewed on a day-to-day basis by the Law Reform
Commi ssi on, whose recommendati ons were forwarded to the Attorney-General. The
latter could, of course, exercise his discretion in deciding whether or not to
accept them

96. Ref erence had been nade to the backlog of cases in the courts: that
problem affected mainly the High Court, which could not give precedence to
cases of accused persons awaiting trial because of the need to hear election
petitions. The petitions had to be dealt with pronptly enough to enable
menbers of Parliament to exercise their functions within the five-year period
of the life of Parliament.

97. On the question raised by Lord Colville, he said that in one instance
the Governnent of Zanzi bar had hired judges from Nigeria, but that was an
exceptional case. By “acting” or “ad hoc” judges, he had meant persons who
had the necessary legal qualifications to be appointed judges of the High
Court (for exanple, practising |awers), who were given a |linmted mandate to
try a particular case. There was also the practice of giving extended
jurisdiction to resident magistrates, who were also legally qualified persons
with a nunber of years' experience, to enable themto try cases that they
woul d not normally handl e.

98. The period fromthe arrest of the accused to the tine he cane before
the judge differed considerably in different cases, and could be as long as



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1689
page 16

two years. He enphasized that there was a difference between “arrest” and
“detention”: arrests were a normal procedure under the Crimnal Procedure
Code, whereas detention was an exceptional procedure used under the Preventive
Detention Act. The Covernnent was aware of the problem of del ays caused by

t he backl og of cases, and had re-established case-nmanagenent-fl ow conm ttees
to ook into it.

99. A nunber of pieces of legislation had been reconmended for review or
repeal. They included the Preventive Detention Act, the Corporal Punishnment
Ordi nance, the Deportation Ordinance, the Human Resources Depl oynent Act, and
the Wtchcraft Ordinance. He would provide the Comrittee with a full |ist of
the instrunents at a |ater stage.

100. Concerning the restriction on the establishnment of political parties
referred to by M. Prado Vallejo, it should be borne in mnd that Tanzani a was
uni que in being made up of two Governnents, the Governnent of Zanzibar and the
Governnent of Tanzania. |In order to create that union, the people of both
countries had had to sacrifice sone of their sovereignty. The purpose of the
Political Parties Act was sinply to protect the union: although Tanzani a had
been a country for some 70 years, it still had problens of national cohesion
and national identity. For the same reason, the Act prohibited the formation
of political parties based on religious grounds.

101. In respect of paragraph 47 of the report, it was true that there had
been no real devel opnent in the situation since the second periodic report had
been consi dered. However, the President was currently de facto prohibited
from denying anyone the right to life even in a state of emergency, and the
articles of the Constitution on the matter had been forwarded to the Law

Ref orm Commi ssion for review and possible repeal. The Commi ssion itself had
criticized the extraordinary powers given to the President by the Energency
Powers Act.

102. Corporal punishnment had, in the past, been abolished but had since been
reinstated on the insistence of the | awenforcenent officers. He was not
convi nced that corporal punishment could be said to constitute cruel, inhuman
or degrading treatnment or punishnent.

103. On the question of incomuni cado detention, he said that persons on
remand were supposed to be brought before a magistrate within 24 hours of
their arrest, although that did not always occur in practice. Officers
failing in their duty in that respect could be charged with abuse of power.
Det enti on under the Preventive Detention Act had been resorted to in only a
very small nunber of politically sensitive cases, and was a | egacy of the
one-party system He doubted whether it had been utilized since the adoption
of the systemof political pluralism

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




